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Milroy, Shannon

From: noreply@civicplus.com
Sent: Friday, March 14, 2025 12:15 PM
To: ATax Communications
Subject: Online Form Submittal: Accommodations Tax Grant Application

WARNING!  

This email originated from outside of the Town of Bluffton's email system. DO NOT click any links or open any 

attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.  

 

Accommodations Tax Grant Application 
 

  

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

 
 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT 
APPLICATION 

Accommodations Tax 
Grant Application 
Instructions 

Accommodations Tax Grant Application Instructions  

Accommodations Tax 
Grant Application 
Instructions 

I have read and acknowledged the Town of Bluffton, SC 

Accommodations Tax Grant Application Instructions. 

(Section Break) 

Application Date 3/5/2025  

Project Name Project: Face-Lift (Phase III) 

Project/Event Location MC Riley Park -- 185 Goethe Road 

Is this a new project or 
event? 

No 

Project/Event Start Date: 1/15/2025  

Project/Event End Date 10/30/2025  

Multi-Year 
Project/Event? 

Yes 
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Total Project Costs $72,000 

Total ATAX Funds 
Requested 

$20,000 

Percent of Total Budget 28% 

Date the funds are 
needed: 

4/28/2025  

Full Legal Organization 
Name 

Michael C. Riley High School Alumni Association 

Address PO Box 451 

Street Address Line 2 185 Goethe Road 

City Bluffton 

State SC 

Zip Code 29910 

Applicant must be 
designated as a non-
profit entity to receive 
ATAX funds. Is your 
entity a non-profit 
organization? 

Yes 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

Organization Primary Point of Contact 

First Name George 

Last Name I Bush 

Title Program Director 

Phone Number 843-412-2572 

E-mail Address geoarie2@comcast.net  

(Section Break) 

Organization Secondary Point of Contact 

First Name Murray 
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Last Name Christopher 

Title Project Director 

Phone Number 843-422-2970 

E-mail Address ashante@roadrunner.com  

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

Project Description:  The MC Riley Commemorative Garden and Wall, and the SC 

Historical Roadside Marker were erected at the former Black 

High School site in 2002 -- MC Riley Park, 185 Goethe Road; 

the unveiling took place on July 6, 2002; the facility was erected 

in commemoration and tribute to graduates, attendees, teachers 

and staff of the former school. The facility became an 

"immediate tourist attraction." 

 

Through the years, due to lack of proper care, the facility drifted 

into obscurity; the thick plant foliage simply took over the facility; 

the commemorative wall, in particular, had become 

unnoticeable. Refurbishing the facility had become a priority. 

The MC Riley High School Alumni Association was reconvened 

in 2022; a plan was developed to make "lasting improvements 

to the facility"; the plan was named Project: Face-Lift. 

 

Project: Face-Lift is designed and implemented to refurbish, 

revitalize and expand the entire facility. The Project is being 

completed in three Phases. Phase I began in February of 2023 

and completed in September of 2023; Phase II began in 

October of 2023 and completed in October of 2024. Phase III 

started in January of 2025 and is scheduled to be completed in 

October of 2025.  

 

Phase I included the followings: 1) formulate plans for 

refurbishing facility, 2) develop a funding infrastructure, 3) make 

plans known to graduates and/or MC Riley attendees, 4) site 

prep -- removal of over-grown plants and debris, 5) establish 

Association website and 6) secure the services of Landscape 

Architect.  

 

Phase II included the following: 1) install two 20' flagpoles, 2) 

install front wrought iron fence w/two wrought iron gates, 3) 

install two benches for sitting, 4) extend the "front oyster shell 

tabby flooring", 5) install "gold hawk emblem", centered on top 

of the wall, 6) steam wash and re-paint concrete balls & 

mildewed brick pillars.  

 

The work of Phase III is designed to create a back entrance to 
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the facility, enabling entrance to the facility from the park area; 

the back entrance will very much mirror the front entrance in 

design and content, with a few exceptions. The following 

objectives will be completed: 1) erect two additional pillars, 2) 

install two additional flagpoles, 3) install additional 50' of 

wrought iron fencing w/single gate entrance, 4) extend "oyster 

tabby concrete floor", as needed, 5) on back wall, install "bronze 

cast iron plate -- 36" x 24""with names of all MC Riley graduates 

embossed upon it, 6) install "lighting system", allowing for 

nighttime full illumination of the Facility, and 7) make the facility 

a "low maintenance facility." The completion of Phase III will 

signal the completion of Project: Face-Lift.  

List any required 
permits, if applicable. If 
none, type “N/A": 

N/A 

Describe all planned 
advertising and 
marketing for this 
project/event: 

Plans for revitalization of the facility were communicated to 

former students, teachers, staff, friends, patrons, etc., via postal 

mail, radio fundraising telethon, Association website, circulars to 

churches, businesses, etc. Letters were sent out to all 

graduates and attendees that we had or were able to get 

addresses for. 

Please list all media 
outlets you intend to 
utilize for your 
project/event (i.e. 
names of magazines, TV 
and radio stations, etc.): 

Praise 94.5 Radio Station -- broadcasting out of Beaufort 

County and TV public service advertisement that covers 

Beaufort, Jasper and Chatham counties.  

 
 
All advertising/marketing paid for with Town of Bluffton Accommodations Tax 
dollars must incorporate the branding shown here: Town of Bluffton Brand 
Standards. The use of the Town’s logo must meet the design standards 
outlined at the aforementioned link and be approved by the Town. Designs 
may be submitted electronically using this link. Please allow five (5) business 
days for approval.  

Impact on or Benefit to 
Tourism: 

Yearly, we plan and put on a Blue and Gold Dinner Banquet or 

an All-Classes Reunion Tailgate Picnic; both of these events 

bring in former graduates/attendees and their family members 

from as far away as California. Usually, about 25% of the 

participants come in from out of town. The Dinner Banquet 

usually accommodate 200 people and the Reunion Tailgate 

Picnic, which is held at the MC Riley Park, accommodate 

upwards of 250 people. Participants coming in from out of town 
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usually arrive on Thursday and stay for at least four days; they 

stay in the local hotels, eat in the local restaurants, etc., and 

always expressed how much they enjoy their stay in Bluffton. 

 
 
“Tourist” means a person who does not reside within the corporate limits of 
the Town or within a Town zip code that takes a trip into the corporate limits of 
the Town for any purpose, except daily commuting to and from work. 

“Travel” and “Tourism” mean the action and activities of people taking trips 
outside their home communities for any purpose, except daily commuting to 
and from work. 

Additional Comments: Project: Face-Lift was communicated to Beaufort County 

Department of Parks and Recreation; we met with Beaufort 

County Parks and Recreation Reps and had a detailed 

discussion of the Project; as a group, they voiced their support 

and has been very helpful, when called upon. 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 
 
To download the Town’s required Line-Item Budget Form, click here: 
https://www.townofbluffton.sc.gov/DocumentCenter/View/4295/ATAX-
Grant-Application-Line-Item-Budget-Form 

Download and save the form and hit "Back" in your web browser to 
return to the application. Once the form is completed, attach it on the 
following line. 

Town’s required Line-
Item Budget Form: 

ATAX-Grant-Application-Line-Item-Budget-Form.pdf  

Most Recent Fiscal Year 
Balance Sheet and Profit 
and Loss Accounting 
Statement 

MC RILEY 2024 REVENUE AND EXPENSE REPORT.docx  

Financial Guarantee MC RILEY MINUTES DECEMBER 13 2022.pdf  
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Applicant must provide a copy of official minutes wherein the sponsoring 
organization approves the project and commits the organization to financial 
responsibility for carrying it out to the stage of completion.  

Please attach Budget vs. 
Actual statements for 
prior two years events. 

MC RILEY 2022 2023 2024 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.pdf  

Please attach Budget vs. 
Actual statements for 
prior two years events. 

IRS DETERMINATION LETTERS.pdf  

(Section Break) 

Have you requested, 
received, or been 
awarded ATAX funding 
from other state or local 
entities for this 
project/event? 

No 

Have you received or 
been awarded ATAX 
funding from other state 
or local entities for any 
other project/event? 

No 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

PRIOR RECIPIENT'S REPORT 
 
If your organization has received ATAX funding from the Town of Bluffton 
in previous years, you must complete the below information.  

If you have not received ATAX funding from the Town of Bluffton, please 
answer "No" and skip this section, and sign and submit your application. 

Has your organization 
previously received 
ATAX funds from the 
Town of Bluffton? 

No 

(Section Break) 

Please attach a copy of 
your organization's IRS 
Designation Letter 

IRS DETERMINATION LETTERS_1.pdf  
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showing your non-profit 
status . 

Please upload a copy of 
your current Town of 
Bluffton Business 
License, which is 
required of all 
applicants. 

IRS DETERMINATION LETTERS_2.pdf  

Additional Application 
Documents 

MC Riley HS Alumni Association Board of Directors 3.docx  

Additional Application 
Documents 

PROJECT FACE LIFT 3D RENDITION.pdf  

Additional Application 
Documents 

Field not completed. 

Additional Application 
Documents 

Field not completed. 

TOWN OF BLUFFTON ACCOMMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION 

 
 
All applicants will be required to come before the Accommodations Tax 
Advisory Committee (ATAC) and answer any and all questions when 
scheduled to do so. 

Any organization awarded funds for advertising/marketing must incorporate 
the Bluffton Heart of the Lowcountry brand logo in all promotional materials 
and advertising. 

The South Carolina Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) defines a “public body” 
as any organization or corporation supported in whole or in part by public 
funds or expending public funds. If awarded, your organization's acceptance 
of public funds from the Town of Bluffton may cause your organization to 
come within the meaning of “public body” as defined by the Freedom of 
Information Act. S.C. Code Ann. §30-4-10, et seq. (Supp. 2002). Accordingly, 
this is to advise that by accepting public funds, your organization may be 
subject to the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act. 

By submitting this application, the organization certifies that it has read and 
understands the paragraphs above. The organization additionally certifies that 
it does not discriminate in any manner on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, age, sex, disability, religion, or language and that all funds that may be 
received by the applicant organization from the Town of Bluffton, South 
Carolina will be solely used for the purposes set forth in this application and 
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will comply with all laws and statutes, including the South Carolina Code of 
Laws regarding Allocations of Accommodations Tax Revenues. 

 
 
By typing your name below, you are signing this application electronically. 
You agree that your electronic signature is the legal equivalent of your manual 
signature on this application.  

Signature George Bush Jr 

Signatory's Title or 
Position 

Program Director 

 

  

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.  
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Revenues - Cash
Sponsorships $

Donations $

ATAX Grants/Funding from Other Entities* $
* Do NOT  include anticipated award funds requested in this application

Other Grants (please name): $

Vendor Fees $
Registration Fees $

Other Fees (please name): $
Other Fees (please name): $

Mercandise Sales $
Other Sales (please name): $
Other Sales (please name): $

Other Revenue (please name): $
Other Revenue (please name): $

Revenues - In-Kind Contributions
Volunteer Hours $

Donated Items $
Donated Services $

Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $

Total All Revenue Sources: $

REVENUES

TOWN OF BLUFFTON
ACCOMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION BUDGET

Attachment 2

2500

6000

Radio Telethon Fundraiser 7000

750

MC Riley Dinner Banquet 12500

Pritchardville Tribute Breakfast 2250

Olde School Record Hop 3750

MC Riley Commemorative Calendar Sales 2250

37000
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Eligible Tourism-Related Expense Categories (per SC Code of Laws)
Amount

Advertising & Promotion of Tourism or Arts and Cultural Events
Local Newspaper/Digital Advertising $

Regional Newspaper/Digital Advertising $
National Newspaper/Digital Advertising $

Local Magazine/Digital Advertising $
Regional Magazine/Digital Advertising $
National Magazine/Digital Advertising $

Local Radio Advertising $
Regional Radio Advertising $
National Radio Advertising $

Local Television Advertising $
Regional Television Advertising $
National Television Advertising $

Billboards $
Social Media Advertising $
E-mail and/or Text Blasts $

Postcards/Mailers $
Posters/Banners/Signage $

Graphic Design of Marketing/Writing or Press Releases $
Web Hosting for Event (not organization) $

Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $

Facilities for Civic and Cultural Events
Rentals: Tables, Chairs, Stages, Tents $

Rental: Sound, Audio Equipment $
Construction $

Repairs to Facilities $
Maintenance of Facilities $

Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $

EXPENSES

TOWN OF BLUFFTON
ACCOMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION BUDGET

Attachment 2

2500

500

500

Campbell Chapel Fellowship Hall Rental for Banquet 2500
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Eligible Tourism-Related Expense Categories (per SC Code of Laws)
Amount

Tourist Transportation
Company Name: $
Company Name: $

Public Facilities
Temporary/Portable Restrooms $

Permanent Restrooms $
Parks $

Parking Lots $
Other (please name): $
Other (please name): $

Municipality and County Services
Dumpster Rental/Trash Hauling $

Security Provided by Bluffton Police Department $
Security NOT Provided by Bluffton Police Department $

Total of ATAX Eligible Expenses: $

Other/Ineligible Expenses

Item Amount
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Total of Other/Ineligible Expenses: $

Total Project/Event Budget: $

Total Project/Event Profit or Loss $

TOWN OF BLUFFTON
ACCOMODATIONS TAX GRANT APPLICATION BUDGET

EXPENSES

Applicants should list all other project/event expenses that are not eligible for ATAX funds and not listed above.

Attachment 2

 Project: Face-Lift 25210

MC Riley Blue & Gold Dinner Banquet 7500

38710

0

2500

2500

2000

4000

2000

1400

1000

1000

16400

49900

-12900

Radio Telethon Fundraiser
Pritchardville Tribute Breakfast

Association's Education Fund
MC Riley Olde School Record Hop
MC Riley 2026 Commemorative Calendar
Christmas Parade
MC Riley Mementos
Office Supplies



 
 
 

MC RILEY ALUMNI ASSOCIATION 
REVENUE AND EXPENSE REPORT 

2024 
JANUARY 1, 2024, TO DECEMBER 31, 2024 

 
 

     Budgeted  Actual  Ending  +/- 
CATEGORIES:   Revenue:  Revenue: Expense:  Balance: 
 
Project: Face-Lift   $13,000  $12,000 $8,000   $4,000 
(Phase II) 
Radio Telethon Fundraiser  $8,000   $7,750  $2,200   $5,550 
 
Olde School Record Hop  $3,500   $3,125  $3,300   ($175) 
 
LB Breakfast Buffet Tribute  $2,500   $2,000  $3,100   ($1,100) 
 
Meet & Greet      -0-     -0-  $350   ($350) 
 
All-Classes Reunion & Picnic   -0-     -0-  $750   ($750) 
 
MC Riley Mementos Sale  $500   $780  $325   $455 
 
Miscellaneous    $2,500   $2,500  $3,150   ($650) 
 

TOTAL:    $30,000  $28,155 $21,175  $6,980 
 
 

2024 Revenue Sources 
 

REVENUE SOURCE:    CATEGORY:    AMOUNT: 
 
Beaufort Fund     General Project Support   $5,000 
Bargain Box      General Project Support    $1,000 
Radio Telethon Fundraiser   General Project Support   $7,750 
Individual Donations    General Project Support   $12,125 
MC Riley Mementos Sale   General Project Support   $780 
Parker’s Kitchen Fund    Breakfast Buffet Tribute   $1.500 
 
TOTAL:            $28,155 
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MC RILEY HS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Name and Address Data Information Meetings 
Attended 

Affiliations 

George Bush, Jr., Program Director 
2530 Flamingo Drive 
Charleston, SC 29414 

843-412-2572 
geoarie2@comcast.net 

 
1 of 1 

 
Class of ‘1965 Graduate 

Murray Christopher, Project  
PO Box 21223         Director 
Hilton Head Island, SC 29923 

843-422-9760 
ashante@roadrunner.com 

 
1 of 1 

 
Class of ‘1965 Graduate 

Ben Driessen Treasurer 
PO Box 21125 
Hilton Head Island, SC 29925 

843-683-1947 
abdulx@roadrunner.com 

 
0 of 1 

 
Class of ‘1965 Graduate 

Sharon Wilborn-Brown, Acting 
12 Elizabeth Road-Asst Treasurer 
Hilton Head Island, SC 29926 

803-974-0372 
s_wilborn@hotmail.com 

 
1 of 1 

 
MC Riley Attendee 

Carolyn Brown 
1402 E. 34th Street 
Savannah, Ga 31404 

912-228-0196 
carolynfbrown52@yahoo.com 

 
0 of 1 

 
MC Riley Attendee 

Shirley Camacho, Acting Secretary 
299 Station Parkway 
Bluffton, SC 29910 

843-263-8014 
scamacho70@yahoo.com 

 
1 of  1 

 
Class of ‘1967 Graduate 

Anne Cooke 
37 Thomas Heyward Street 
Bluffton, SC 29910 

843-298-5432 
alcooke14@gmail.com 

 
1 of 1 

 
Class of ‘1962 Graduate 

Isaac Bryant 
1 Mike Drive 
Okatie, SC 29936 

 
843-415-6279 

 
0 of 1 

 
Class of ‘1968 Graduate 

Theodore Frazier (Teddy) 
4524, 9th Street, N.W 
Washington, DC 20011  

 
202-560-4609 
frazierlloyd@live.com 

 
0 of 1 

 
MC Riley Attendee 

Lula Ford 
PO Box 432 
Bluffton, SC 29910 

 
843-290-4819 

 
1 of 1 

 
MC Riley Attendee 

Mattie M. Edwards 
PO Box 1092 
Bluffton, SC 29910 

 
843-757-6682 
917-773-5670 

 
1 of 1 

 
Class of ‘1969 Graduate 

Margaret Frazier 
147 Simmonsville Road 
Bluffton, SC 29910 

 
917-717-2396 

 
1 of 1 

 
Class of 1966 Graduate 

Curtis Howard 
160-10-89th Ave., Apt. 3-A 
Jamaica, NY 11432 

 
917-602-2152 
cgothe254@gmail.com 

 
1 of 1 

 
Class of 1965 Graduate 

Barbara Uzzle 
139 Old Miller Road 
Bluffton, SC 29910 

843-540-2221, 843-757-7503 
uzzlebarbara@yahoo.com 

1 of 1 Friend of MC Riley 
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